
AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF MAUMELLE

JULY 5, 2016

6: 00 PM

CITY HALL

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The City of Maumelle welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs.  Any religious
viewpoint expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting,
reflects only the personal opinion of the speaker. It is not intended to proselytize,
advance, or disparage any religious belief.

3. WARD 3 POSITION 2 APPOINTMENT

A.  Andrew Fong B.  Burch Johnson C.  Timmons

4. SPECIAL GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES—June 20th REGULAR MEETING

6.  PUBLIC COMMENT

During Public Comment,  issues NOT on the agenda may be addressed.    Public

comments concerning items on the agenda will be allowed when that item is
discussed by the Council.   Anyone wishing to make a comment must fill out the
provided form and present it to the City Clerk.  In the interest of time comments will

be limited to three ( 3) minutes.  This privilege may be revoked by the Mayor in
the case of inappropriate language or comments.  Any public member shall first
state his or her name and address, followed by a concise statement of the person's
position or concern.  All remarks shall be addressed to the Mayor or the Council

as a whole, not to any particular member of the Council. No person other than the
Council members and the person having the floor shall be permitted to enter into any
discussions without permission of the Mayor.

7. FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVIEW (second meeting of each month)

8. PROCEDURAL MOTION

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

10. NEW BUSINESS



11.  MAYOR' S COMMENTS

A.  4t" Fest Update

B.  Any Fireworks Issue Update

C. Audit Update

12.  PLANNING COMMISISON REPORT

A.  Alderman Holt

13. ALDERMEN' S COMMENTS

14.  CITY ATTORNEY' S COMMENTS

15.  CITY CLERK' S COMMENTS

16.  FYI

A.  Sales Tax Reports

B.  Check Presentation for Counting on Each Other— July
6t"' 12: 00 pm

C.  July Planning Commission Liaison— Volunteer Needed

D.  Mayor' s 3` d Entrance Workshop Notes

17. ADJOURNMENT



Joshua Clausen

From:    Fong, Andrew < Andrew.Fong @fda.hhs.gov>
Sent:     Friday, July 01, 2016 11: 55 AM
To:       Joshua Clausen

Subject: Alderman Ward 3 application

Attachments:  ResumeCV 2016b Andrew Fong.doc

Joshua, I have some interest in the Alderman, Ward 3 position, but I literal)  found out about it 30 minutes ago. I havep Y i

no time to adopt my resume', so I' m sending my professional chemist' s resume.

Andrew F nFong, P h. D., Acting Supervisory Chemist, Nanotechnology
FDA Arkansas Regional Laboratory
Jefferson, AR

870) 543-4638

Andrew.fong@fda.hhs.gov

1



Andrew Fong, Ph.D.

FDA Arkansas Regional Lab

3900 NCTR Rd, Bldg 26 144 Lily Dr.
Jefferson, AR 72079 Maumelle, AR 72113

andrew. fongnfda.hhs.gov

870- 543- 4638 ( W)

501- 200-7669 (M) 501- 803- 0166 (H)

Lead Chemist/Team Leader, Antibiotic Residue Group, FDA Arkansas Regional Laboratory
and Acting Supervisor, ARL Nanotechnology Group, July 2015 —Present)

Education:

Ph.D., Analytical Chemistry with Minor in Physical Chemistry, 1994, Indiana University,
Bloomington, IN.

Dissertation Title: Novel Near- Infrared Spectrometric Analytical Techniques

Research Advisor:  Professor Gary M. Hieftje

B. S. Chemistry, with ACS certification, Magna Cum Laude, 1988, Rhodes College,
Memphis, TN.

Professional Experience:

July 2015- present, detail as Acting Supervisory Chemist, Nanotechnology Research Group,
Arkansas Regional Lab. (7 Months)

Performed PMAP evaluations of 3 Ph.D. FDA researchers and one support staff.

Performed administrative tasks for 4 ORISE fellows (Ph.D.' s).

Performed administrative tasks for a Commissioner' s Fellow, including counseling on his
research projects.

Approved purchases for the Nano group and formulated an annual budget request to ORS
for the group.
Interacted with and coordinated with the NCTR Nanocore director.

Attended a week-long hands-on-training for Nanotechnology to improve my
understanding of the characterization of nanoparticles.

Participated in the 6th annual Nanotechnology for Healthcare conference.
Responded to data calls from ARL admin personnel and from ORS in a timely manner
Responded to ORS calls for reviews of nanotechnology related documents to review.
Gathered comments from our Nano group and coordinated our group' s response to the
calls for comments.

Called and conducted Nano group meetings.
Safety— I identified a source of significant radiation in the Nanocore laboratory which
had been forgotten about, and immediately alerted employees working in the area, the
NCTR safety department, and the rest of the Nanocore so that the item could be identified
and claimed by the owner.



Recognize and reward employees for their achievements by nominating them for awards.

March 2015, 30- day detail as Acting Chemistry II Branch Director, Arkansas Regional Lab.
Approved all purchases during that detail for the Chem II Branch.
Reviewed and approved all violative work packages from the Chem II Branch.

Had meetings and discussions with supervisors regarding operational issues.
Responded to data calls from ARL admin personnel and from ORS.

Nov 2004— Present, US Food and Drug Administration, Arkansas Regional Lab.  Lead
Chemist/Team Leader, Food Chemistry 2 ( antibiotic residue) Group.
Trace level ( low ppb) chemotherapeutics analysis, LC/ MS/MS, HPLC, FT- IR, TLC, XRF,

Color additives analysis, Food additives analysis, Counterterrorism Screening Analysis,
Allergens analysis via ELISA, Private Lab Reviews, Wrote up and/or reviewed numerous
method Validations/Verifications, Large Analytical Chemistry Equipment Requisitions.

As Lead Chemist have become known as a field expert in the area of chemistry
method validations.  I have participated in and authored dozens of validation and

verification studies in the ARL Food Chemistry 2 group.
ORS requested my help in explaining and clarifying method validation requirements
to personnel at the FDA Northeast Regional Lab.

I have been the key person for the Food Chem 2 group during this period to develop
the Memorandum of Need, Statement of Work, and other documents and fact finding
to support capital purchases ( requisition packages) and functioning as the COTR.  I
average several important requisition packages each year.

Principal reviewer during this time period for violative and Class 2/ 4 worksheet
packages.

Developed and implemented Excel-based control chart tracking.  I regularly maintain
the control charts and calculate new control chart limits as prescribed by our work
instructions.

Validation and verification of spreadsheets.

Assisting supervisor in decisions affecting QA/QC or making the decisions when the
supervisor is absent.

Troubleshoot and maintain complex analytical equipment such as LC/MS,

spectrometers, and HPLC' s.

Train and assist others in the group in troubleshooting and maintenance activities.
Tempsys Point of Contact for Food Chemistry group.
CMS-PLAP coordinator for Food Chemistry group (private lab reviewing system)— I

also assign private lab packages for review( assign work).

I track and coordinate service contracts on the large and expensive pieces of

equipment in the Food Chem 2 group.
Authored SOPs, reviewed SOPs, and revised SOPS.  I was on the Quality Review
Team for every significant SOP to be developed or reviewed by the Food Chem 2
team.

Reviewed proposed changes to processes, form changes.

Reviewed and edited nonconformance and issue forms.



Responsible along with the supervisor for reviewing dozens of logbooks annually.
Oversaw calibration of timers, thermometers, and pipettors.

October 2014-present:  Chair of the chemotherapeutics private lab review expert panel.

Coordinated expert panel review of private lab validations and other issues. This

coordination involved communications between 6 ORA labs and ORS.

Provided feedback and actively participated in discussions with ORS on private
lab issues.

Wrote numerous responses on private lab issues including many reviews of PL
validations.

Am on the CAG for development of the Private Lab Reviewing courses, and was
a presenter at two of the courses held thus far in 2014 and 2015.

2015 - Presented guidance to private lab industry leadership and representatives on the topic
of method validations and verifications to meet FDA requirements.

2014— Successfully led the implementation of ELISA testing for allergens in the ARL Food
Chem 2.

Trained two additional analysts in ELISA allergen testing
Oversaw the purchase of all the required equipment

Implemented quality and performance testing for the required allergen testing
equipment.

The ARL FC2 group participated in and performed admirably in two assignments—
milk in dark chocolate and gluten free foods.

Reviewed all allergen analytical results before final reporting.

May 2010-present, Represented ARL as LIMS Coordinator for the Chemistry Branches.
Fielded data calls and coordinated the response for the ARL Chemistry teams to
DFS/ ORS and with Dovel.

Active member of the Change Management Process Material Management group
which is responsible for correct entry of LIMS materials into the new system and for
setting standards for entry of new materials.  (meets weekly)

2012— Coordinated the requisition of 8 LC/MS/ MS instruments for five different ORA
laboratories.  Surveyed the needs of each ORA laboratory and customized the requisition
to meet each lab' s needs.  I continue to be responsible for renewal of option years of

service contracts, facilitating communications between the contacts at each lab, the
contractor, the OEM, GAGS, and ORS.

2005 —Was instrumental in bringing the Ephedra methods online, both the HPLC-UV
determinative method and the HPLC-MS confirmatory method.  For these efforts the
group was awarded the FDA Award of Merit.

2005 —present, Regular attendee of the CVM Aquaculture Research call, representing ARL
Food Chemistry 2.



2005 —present, Have been the point person for the Food Chemistry 2 group to interact with
outside auditors during our accreditation audits.  We have had a good record of a low
number of findings.

May 2002— Nov 2004, US Food and Drug Administration, Arkansas Regional Lab.  Chemist,
Food Chemistry Group.

Brought color additive methods online

Brought food additive methods online

Brought chemistry counterterrorism methods online
Lead a team of Food Chemistry chemists to test the FDA mobile lab and supported
its operation

Communicated needs of the FDA mobile lab to DFS

April 1996— May 2002 , Penn Specialty Chemicals/ Great Lakes Chemical Corp., Memphis, TN.
R& D Analytical Chemist and QC Specialist.

Troubleshooting, method development, and research at a specialty chemical company.  GC, FT-
NIR, FT- IR, HPLC, AA, UV-VIS, physical testing, and wet chemical methods development.

Developed and validated a landmark Near-IR method for the company to determine
hydroxyl number and molecular weight of its signature product, poly-THF.  This method
eliminated the use of hazardous reagents and reduced analysis time by three hours.
Successfully transferred the Near-IR method to two subsidiary laboratories in Antwerp,
Belgium.

Completed frontline leadership training because I was identified as an upcoming frontline
leader.

Developed a GC- FID method to monitor organic chemical contamination in wastewater

streams.

Maintained an in-plant GC- FPD system for determination of sulfur compounds in

feedstock material.

Authored numerous SOPs in an ISO-9000 regulated environment.

June 1995 —April 1996, Mid-Continent Laboratories, Memphis, TN, Analytical Chemist.

GC and wet chemical testing and methods development on agricultural products at an
independent testing laboratory.

Implemented standard methods for testing of residual hexane in feeds and oils by
headspace GC-FID.  Previously no one in that lab had any GC experience or expertise.  I
was able to implement the method in less than a week.

Implemented a standard method for Fatty Acid Methyl Esters by GC-FID.

1988, Procter & Gamble, Cincinnati, OH, Summer Analytical Research Participant( SARP)

Worked on the development and testing of an electrochemical sensor.
Presented research findings at the SARP symposium.

1987, Oak Ridge Associated Universities/Oak Ridge National Laboratory, Oak Ridge, TN.
Summer Research Participant

Experiments and data collection using a novel fiber-optic spectroscopic probe.



Publications: ( a completely updated list, including presentations is available upon request)

Brian Veach, Sean Johnson, Dale Rimmer, Connie Drake, Andrew Fong, Qing Delgado,
Bryanna Broadaway, John Kibbey, and Sean Linder, FDA/ORA/ORS Laboratory Information
Bulletin( 2014) # 4560, " LC/MS/ MS Multiclass Determination and Confirmation of Drug
Residues in Honey"

Brian Veach, Connie Drake, Andrew Fong, and Sean Linder, FDA/ORA/DFS Laboratory
Information Bulletin( 2009) # 4434, " Method for Determination and Confirmation of

Norfloxacin, Enrofloxacin, and Ciprofloxacin using LC/MS3"

Brian Veach, Heather Hawk, Andrew Fong, and Darryl Langley, FDA/ORA/DFS Laboratory
Information Bulletin( 2007) #4389, " LC/MS/MS Determination of Fluoroquinolones in Honey"

Heather Hawk, Lori Graham, Andrew Fong, and Benjamin Phillips, FDA/ORA/DFS Laboratory
Information Bulletin (2007) #4392, " Identification and Quantitation of Artificial Sweeteners in

Drinks Using Ion Chromatography"

Andrew Fong and Gary M. Hieftje; "Near-IR Spectroscopic Examination of Thin-Layer

Chromatography Plates in the Diffuse Transmittance Mode," Applied Spectroscopy, 48( 3), 394-

9 ( 1994).

Andrew Fong and Gary M. Hieftje; "Near- Infrared Measurement of Relative and Absolute

Humidity Through Detection of Water Adsorbed on a Silica-Gel Layer," Analytical Chemistry,
67, 1139-46 ( 1995).

Andrew Fong and Gary M. Hieftje; " Low-Volume Diffuse-Transmittance Fiber-Optic Near-

Infrared Spectrometer," Applied Spectroscopy, 49(4), 486- 92 ( 1995).

Andrew Fong and Gary M. Hieftje; " A Multiplex-Bandpass Near- Infrared Spectrometer

Utilizing Molecular Filters," Applied Spectroscopy, 49( 4), 493- 8 ( 1995).

Andrew Fong and Gary M. Hieftje; " Simple Near-Infrared Spectrometric Sorption-Based Vapor

Sensor," Appled Spectroscopy, 49( 9), 1261- 7 ( 1995).

ORA CAGs:

2014- 2015, LB 245- 246, Private Lab Reviews

2009, LB 208 Spectroscopy

Honors:

2013, FDA Leveraging Collaboration Group Award— EU Audit US Residue Testing Program
2005, FDA Award of Merit Group Award, ARL Ephedra Team
2001, Penn Specialty Chemicals QA/QC award for support of new plant startup.



1991- 1994, Boehringer Mannheim Predoctoral Fellowship.
1991, Charles N. Reilley-Upjohn Award.
1988- 1991, NSF Graduate Research Fellowship (approx. 50 awarded nationwide annually for
chemistry)

1988, Phi Beta Kappa.

1987, Mortar Board.

Membership and offices held in professional societies:

Society for Applied Spectroscopy 1989-2003
American Chemical Society 1985- 2006
Served on Program Committee for Memphis, TN ACS Local Section 1998- 2000

Membership in FDA committees:

LIMS Change Management Process Material Management Group, 2015- Present
DHRD Private Lab Review CAG, LB 245- 246, 2014-Present

ORA Mass Spectrometry Workgroup, 2002—
DHRD Spectroscopy CAG, LB 208, 2009
ORA ALM Committee, 2010— present

ARL Asian American Special Emphasis Representative 2008-2012

ARL Awards committee 2005- 2008, 2016 - present

ORA Training Courses Completed:

2015, Hands- on-Training for Nanotechnology
2014, LB 305 Advanced Chromatography
2013, LB 403 Advanced Mass Spectrometry
2013, LB 211 Allergens Testing
2010, X-ray Fluorescence training
2005, Level 1 Analyst Certification

Professional Supervisory References:
Himansu Vyas

FDA/ORA/ARL Chemistry I Branch Director
870- 543- 4023

Himansu.vyaskfda.hhs.gov

Connie P. Drake

FDA/ORA/ORS Regulatory Scientist
870- 370-4003

Connie.drakenfda.hhs.gov

Darryl Langley
FDA/ORA/ARL Supervisory Chemist
870- 543- 4079

Darryl. langley(& fda.hhs. gov



William Wilson

my supervisor at Penn Specialty Chemicals, 2001- 2002)
901- 626- 9114

billandvicki(a juno.com



June 25, 2016

Joshua Clausen

Subject:  Ward #3, Position 2

Joshua,

I would like to be considered for the position that was left open when Marion

Scott moved out of the ward. As you know, I held this position for six years prior to her
election.

In summary, I have served two terms as Mayor, six years as alderman and many
jobs as a volunteer for the Senior Wellness Center.

If this information is not enough, let me know and I will send a total resume reflecting my
life business history.

Thanks for your coni eration.

Burch Johnson



Joshua Clausen

From:    Timmons Team Summit < timmons3@icloud.com>

Sent:     Friday, July 01, 2016 7:24 AM
To:       Joshua Clausen

Subject: Timmons resume

To:   Mayor Mike Watson.

City Council.
Aldermen. Ward 1.

Steve Mosley & Ken Saunders

Aldermen Ward 2

Marc Kelly& Rick Anderson

Alderman Ward 3

Preston Lewis

Aldermen Ward 4

John Vaprersan & Jess Holt

To assume the Maumelle Alderman. Ward 3 position on. the city
council.

Name:   Timmons

117 Southshore Drive.  Originally from Cleveland, Ohio,

relocated by the company my husband Worked for in 1993.

Relocated Husband, 2 sisters, 2 sons,  1 daughter, & mother who

all bought homes in Maumelle.

Accomplishments

Maumelle Board of Directors before change of government

Served on. the Maumelle Dousing Development Corp
CEO of Team Summit an Event Mgmt.  Co.



Help to create NHN of Maumelle
Opened up Maumelle Park on the River
VP of Timmons Arts Foundation

Board of Directors North Pulaski Community Dousing Board
Clear Channels Marketing/Promotional, Public Relations

Director

Delta Sigma Theta Mother of the Year

NAACP Outstanding Achievement Award
LR Regional. Minority Business Award
Member of Little Rock Link Corp
Served as member of Maumelle Rotary
Member of Maumelle Chamber

Member of St. Mark Baptist Church

Dedicated to Faith, Family & Community

Please allow me to be the the community activist by serving as
Alderman for Ward 3

Sent from my Wad

2



MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING

CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF MAUMELLE

JUNE 201h , 2016

6: 00 PM

CITY HALL

Mayor Watson called the meeting to order at 6: 00 p.m. with seven members present. Ward 3 Position 2 is
vacant.  City Clerk Clausen gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

SPECIAL GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mayor Watson announced Alderman Scott' s resignation due to her moving out of her ward and thanked he for
her service. Alderman Vaprersan motioned to declare a vacancy in Ward 3. Alderman Saunders seconded the

motioned and it passed unanimously.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES—JUNE 6th REGULAR MEETING

Alderman Vaprersan motioned to approve the June 6th minutes. Alderman Anderson seconded the motion and

it passed unanimously.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVIEW

City Clerk Clausen gave a PowerPoint presentation on the financials.

Alderman Mosley thanked Ms. Thompson for staying close and continuing to help with the financials.
Alderman Mosley asked when would Mr. Craft make his yearly presentation.

City Clerk Clausen stated they are putting the finishing touches on and would be done by the 3001 of this month
and hope to be ready to present on July 5th. Alderman Mosley asked how the hunt for a new Finance Director
was going.  City Clerk Clausen stated we have only had 4 applicants and had not started interviews yet.

Alderman Kelley asked how many open positions we have. Mayor Watson stated we are down an Assistant
Public Works Director, Director of Human Resources and Director of Finance.

Alderman Holt motioned to approve the financials. Alderman Anderson seconded the motion and it passed

unanimously.

PROCEDURAL MOTION

Alderman Saunders moved to have all ordinances and resolutions read by title only. Alderman Lewis seconded
the motion and it passed unanimously.

ORDINANCE 908 ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF STREETS & DRAINAGE

With no objection, Mayor Watson called for the third reading of the ordinance accepting and confirming the
dedication of certain streets and drainage associated with Ridgeview Trails, Phase I.  The City Clerk gave the
reading.

1



Alderman Anderson motioned to approve Ordinance 908. Alderman Kelley seconded the motion and it passed
unanimously.

MAYOR' S COMMENTS

Mayor Watson stated there will be a workshop on the proposed 3` d entrance June 27th at 6: 00pm. Alderman
Kelley stated he would be out of town that day.

Mayor Watson stated that the Maumelle rings project is still a work in progress.

Mayor Watson noted the Champs Blvd railroad crossing would be closed temporarily for repairs and updates.

ALDERMAN' S COMMENTS

Alderman Saunders asked if former Alderman Scott be able to continue on the sign task force. Mayor Watson

stated he had asked her to stay on.  Alderman Saunders thanked Marion Scott for serving on the Council.

Alderman Vaprersan thanked Marion Scott for serving on the Council.

Alderman Mosley thanked Marion Scott for serving on the Council and her bright disposition.  Alderman
Mosley noted the spraying of the vegetation that is growing in the cracks of the concrete and stated it was a
great idea.

CITY ATTORNEY' S COMMENTS

City Attorney Norris stated there was a lawsuit filed against the City by a citizen named Martin Wainwright
alleging he received injuries while in the back of a police car because he was not properly restrained by a
seatbelt.

City Attorney Norris stated the Michael O' Leary lawsuit is in discovery and ongoing.

City Attorney Norris stated the Patricia Meyers lawsuit is in discovery and being handled through the AR
Municipal League.

ADJOURNMENT

Alderman Anderson motioned to adjourn the meeting. Alderman Lewis seconded the motion and it passed
unanimously.

Mayor Watson adjourned the meeting at 6: 26 pm.

MAYOR MICHAEL WATSON

CITY CLERK JOSHUA CLAUSEN

APPROVED

July 5, 2016

2



of

rrwwof
Q   +• Cj})

J

TREASURER OF STATE
Dennis Milligan 500 Woodlane Street; Suite 220

Treasurer Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

Maumelle City Treasurer
550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113-6907

City Sales and Use Tax Funds Distribution

From May, 2016

Effective Date: 6/23/2016

Maumelle Sales and Use Tax

170,719.25 Deposits

5, 121. 58 Service Charge

32.71 Interest Earned
t

1. 84 Vending Decals

165,632.22 Amount Distributed

Telephone:( 501) 682- 5888 Fax:( 501) 682- 3820



City Sales Tax Receipts as of 6/ 23/ 16

City Sales Tax 2016 City Sales Tax 2015 City Sales Tax 2014

January _    183, 840.41 January 163, 827. 26 January 158, 595. 58

February 316, 645. 88 February 245,918. 10 February 220,714. 92

March 218, 500. 16 March 171, 927. 13 March 152, 724. 85

April 163,747.79 April 172, 283.49 April 127, 834.26

May 243, 159.26   _ May 174, 677.48 May 192, 715.85

June 165, 632.22 June 176, 055.42 June 160, 899.48

July July 172, 953.46 July 206, 241. 98

August August 211, 343. 96 August 195, 095. 70

September September 194, 181. 79 September 198, 303. 58

October October 194,693. 99 October 189, 891. 92

November November 208, 235.41 November 188, 520.22

December December 195, 134.66 December 179, 306.78

1, 291, 525.72 2, 281, 232. 15 2, 170, 845. 12

City Sales Tax 2013 City Sales Tax 2012 City Sales Tax 2011

January 163,422. 53 January 160, 103. 50 January 151, 181. 21

February 183, 544.64 February 198, 693. 06 February 206, 761. 98

March 171, 807. 10 March 151, 921. 55 March    _ 151, 487.76

April 153, 503. 81 April 170, 042. 44 April 165,453. 84

May 145,537.47 May 181, 523. 50 May 185,560.42

June 178, 471. 10 June 164,250. 89 June 174,272. 12

July 190, 009. 82 July 177,201. 76 July 159,773. 87

August 188, 935. 09 August 183, 159. 96 August 138,414.71

September 159,795. 86 September 118, 708. 52 September 175, 334. 79

October 198,429.04 October 128, 803. 19 !     October 190, 341. 47

November 194, 153. 56 November 136, 815.59 November 201, 384. 39

December 185, 969. 04 December 239, 084.77 December 169,464.35

2, 113, 579. 06 2, 010, 308.73 2, 069,430.91



Agency Name:  TREASURER OF STATE 501- 682- 5888)    Warrant Numb:  16DDA- 0851310

Address   :  220 STATE CAPITOL BLDG Warrant Date:     6/ 21/ 2016

City,StZip:   LITTLE ROCK AR 72201 Payment Date:    6/ 21/ 2016

Vendor Number:  0800000607 _

Invoice#    Document Text Net Amount

80337621902016 _      Local Sales and Use Tax 165, 632. 22

TOTALS THIS WARRANT 165, 632. 22



T
4

10f
RlrrcnusAy

TREASURER OF STATE
Dennis Milligan 500 Woodlane Street, Suite 220

Treasurer Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

Maumelle City Treasurer
550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113-6907

County Sales and Use Tax Funds Distribution

For May, 2016

Effective Date: 6/23/2016

Pulaski County Sales and Use Tax

Rate Population Percentage Amount Distributed

Alexander City Treasurer 1. 000 236 3,813.34

Cammack Village City Treasurer 1. 000 768 12,409.52

Jacksonville City Treasurer 1. 000 28, 364 458,312. 12

Little Rock City Treasurer 1. 000 193,524 3, 127, 005.89

Maumelle City Treasurer 1. 000 17, 163 277,323.75

North Little Rock City Treasurer 1. 000 62,304 1, 006,722.55

Pulaski County Treasurer 1. 000 48,752 787,746.18

Sherwood City Treasurer 1. 000 29,523 477,039.51

Wrightsville City Treasurer 1. 000 2, 114 34, 158.51

Total 6, 184, 531. 37

Telephone:( 501) 682- 5888 Fax:( 501) 682-3820



COUNTY Sales Tax Receipts as of 6/23/ 16

COUNTY Sales Tax 2016 COUNTY Sales Tax 2015 COUNTY Sales Tax 2014

January 291, 026. 79 January 284,524. 61 January 285,664.21

February 377, 134. 36 February 369,255. 24 February 343,875. 87

March 271, 731. 99 March 275, 803. 19 March 253, 307.63

April 304, 513. 80 April 282,207.46 April 280, 989.89

May 305, 548. 14 May 325,940. 56 May 308,431. 98

June 279,799.21 June 295,504. 97 June 265, 161. 37

July July 298, 089. 77 July 311, 463.75

August August 309, 943. 74 August 295, 398.43

September September       $      302, 187. 22 September     $     285, 825.22

October October 303, 824. 05 October 296,287.46

November November 297,797. 86 November      $     293, 386.95

December December 314, 316. 50 December      $     297, 190. 93

1, 829, 754.29 3, 659,395. 17 3, 516, 983.69
i

COUNTY Sales Tax 2013 COUNTY Sales Tax 2012 COUNTY Sales Tax 2011

January 274, 912. 01 January 268,668. 22 January 176,944. 14

February 336,987. 13 February 351, 268. 58 February 338,596.28

March 267,731. 52 March 263,673. 17 March 252, 353. 59

April 286,460.07 April 286,941. 78 April 263,424.65

May 287,261. 20 May 303,641. 16 May 293,083. 54

June 285, 986.44 IJune 282,248.68 June 285,294. 87

July 293, 878.70 July 294, 806.80 July 271, 871. 00

August 294,289.60 August 300,682. 03 August 294,236.47

September     $      281, 267. 01 September       $      263, 570.85 September     $     285,701. 98

October 288,464. 56 October 286, 864.46       _      October 277, 877.41

November      $      285, 529.62 November 288, 870. 38 November      $     301, 706. 88

December      $      296, 557.30 December 294, 572.68 December      $     276, 834.03

3,479, 325. 16 3, 485,808.79 3, 317, 924.84



Agency Name:  TREASURER OF STATE 501- 682- 5888) Warrant Numb:  16DDA- 0851313

Address   :  220 STATE CAPITOL BLDG Warrant Date:     6/ 21/ 2016

Gity,StZip:   LITTLE ROCK AR 72201 Payment Date:    6/ 21/ 2016

Vendor Number:  0800000607 _

Invoice#    Document Text Net Amount

80337632712016 _       Local Sales and Use Tax 277, 323. 75

TOTALS THIS WARRANT 277, 323. 75



of      '

QD

Rrrrcn, ca 5

TREASURER OF STATE
Dennis Milligan 500 Woodlane Street, Suite 220

Treasurer Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

Maumelle City Treasurer
550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113-6907

County Sales and Use Tax Funds Distribution

For May, 2016

Effective Date: 6/23/2016

Little Rock National AF Pulaski Co Sales and Use Tax

Rate Population Percentage Amount Distributed

Alexander City Treasurer 1. 000 236 33.85

Cammack Village City Treasurer 1. 000 768 110.17

Jacksonville City Treasurer 1. 000 28,364 4, 068.80

Little Rock City Treasurer 1. 000 193,524 27, 760.90

Maumelle City Treasurer 1. 000 17, 163 2,462.02

North Little Rock City Treasurer 1. 000 62,304 8,937.47

Little Rock National Airport 1. 000 48,752 6,993.45

Sherwood City Treasurer 1. 000 29,523 4,235.06

Wrightsville City Treasurer 1. 000 2, 114 303.25

Total 54,904.97

Telephone:( 501) 682- 5888 Fax:( 501) 682- 3820

Iii



Agency Name:  TREASURER OF STATE 501- 682- 5888) Warrant Numb:  16D/

21/

2016311
Address   ;  220 STATE CAPITOL BLDG Warrant Date:

City,St,Zip:   LITTLE ROCK AR 72201 pa ment Date:    6/ 21/ 2016

Vendor Number:  0800000607

Invoice#    Document Text
Net Amount

80337630592016 _      Local Sales and Use Tax
2, 462. 02

TOTALS THIS WARRANT 2, 462. 02



w k.

r?Ecnxs 5

TREASURER OF STATE
Dennis Milligan 500 Woodlane Street, Suite 220

Treasurer Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

Maumelle City Treasurer
550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113-6907

County Sales and Use Tax Funds Distribution

For May, 2016

Effective Date: 6/ 23/2016

North Little Rock AF Pulaski Co Sales and Use Tax

Rate Population Percentage Amount Distributed

Alexander City Treasurer 1. 000 236 0. 18

Cammack Village City Treasurer 1. 000 768 0. 60

Jacksonville City Treasurer 1. 000 28,364 22.22

Little Rock City Treasurer 1. 000 193,524 151. 58

Maumelle City Treasurer 1. 000 17, 163 13.44

North Little Rock City Treasurer 1. 000 62,304 48.80

Little Rock National Airport 1. 000 48,752 38. 19

Sherwood City Treasurer 1. 000 29,523 23. 12

Wrightsville City Treasurer 1. 000 2, 114 1. 66

Total 299.79

Telephone:( 501) 682- 5888 Fax:( 501) 682- 3820



Agency Name:  TREASURER OF STATE 501- 682- 5888)    Warrant Numb:  16DDA- 0851312

Address   :  220 STATE CAPITOL BLDG Warrant Date:     6/ 21/ 2016

Citj, St Zip:   LITTLE ROCK AR 72201 Payment Date:    6/ 21/ 2016

Vendor Number:  0800000607 _

Invoice#    Document Text Net Amount

80337631752016 _       Local Sales and Use Tax 13. 44

TOTALS THIS WARRANT 13. 44

i

Andrea . l ea , ;.A:ud : tor of State .  <: ..
STATE' i:d ARKANSAS

1f ItDA ; 0'851312

DEPOSIT AM,T
069 06 21 2016 CITY OF MAUMELLE 5*    **  *** 13.. 4,4

OFFICE OF;' THE ` TREASURER

l l] UTING:=NU,M$ ER ACCOUN'T"'.NUMBIR '

7273 X°XXXXXX871

L _ . j L —      L .__ _   L __ _ i J_ _ ._. J L. _  1



Local Distribution by NAICS
June 2016

MAUMELLE

NAICS Code NAICS Description Net Sales Net Use Total Rebates Audits

1152 Support Activities for Animal 52. 00 1. 00 53. 00 0.00 0.00

Production

2123 Nonmetallic Mineral Mining and 618. 00 0.00 618.00 0.00 0.00

Quarrying

2349 Other Heavy Construction 15.00 10.00 25.00 0.00 0.00

1 261 14 116.89 1 378.03 85.42 0.002351 Plumbing; Heating; and
Air-Conditioning Contractors

2353 Electrical Contractors 54. 54 1. 00 53.54 0.00 0.00

2359 Other Special Trade Contractors 19. 00 43.00 62.00 0. 00 0.00

2362 Nonresidential Building Construction 56.87 0.00 56.87 62.87 0.00

2382 Building Equipment Contractors 428.76 0.00 428. 76 0.00 0.00

2383 Building Finishing Contractors 55.66 0.00 55.66 11. 40 0. 00

2389 Other Specialty Trade Contractors 60.43 0. 00 60.43 0.00 0. 00

3118 Bakeries and Tortilla Manufacturing 15. 00 0. 88 15.88 0. 00 0.00

3119 Other Food Manufacturing 2. 00 8.45 10.45 0.00 0.00

3121 Beverage Manufacturing 62. 12 519.01 581. 13 0.00 0. 00

3133 Textile and Fabric Finishing and Fabric 51. 00 0.00 51. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Coating Mills

3152 Cut and Sew Apparel Manufacturing 432. 99 87. 10 520.09 0.00 0.00

3222 Converted Paper Product 13.00 5,631. 00 5,644.00 0.00 0.00

Manufacturing

1



Local Distribution by NAICS
June 2016

MAUMELLE

3231 Printing and Related Support Activities 184.01 395.99 580.00 0.00 0. 00

3256 Soap; Cleaning Compound; and Toilet 6. 00 26.00 32.00 0. 00 0. 00

Preparation Manufacturing

3323 Architectural and Structural Metals 224.00 0.00 224.00 0. 00 0. 00

Manufacturing

3329 Other Fabricated Metal Product 10. 38 29.00 39.38 0. 00 0. 00

Manufacturing

3333 Commercial and Service Industry 4.00 180.98 184.98 0.00 0.00

Machinery Manufacturing

3339 Other General Purpose Machinery 177.52 5, 108.99 5, 286.51 0.00 0.00

Manufacturing

3341 Computer and Peripheral Equipment 134.00 773.40 907.40 0.00 0.00

Manufacturing

3342 Communications Equipment 7.00 2. 91 9.91 0. 00 0. 00

Manufacturing

3345 Navigational; Measuring;     0.00 126.45 126.45 0.00 0. 00

Electromedical; and Control

Instruments Manufacturing

3346 Manufacturing and Reproducing 29. 00 7. 00 36. 00 0.00 0.00

Magnetic and Optical Media

3351 Electric Lighting Equipment 12.00 78.00 90. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Manufacturing

3352 Household Appliance Manufacturing 1. 00 2. 00 3.00 0.00 0.00

3391 Medical Equipment and Supplies 0. 06 178.01 178. 07 0.00 0. 00

Manufacturing

2



Local Distribution by NAICS
June 2016

MAUMELLE

3399 Other Miscellaneous Manufacturing 4.21 118.99 123.20 0.00 0. 00

4213 Lumber and Other Construction 554.00 92. 00 646.00 0.00 0.00

Materials Wholesalers

4214 Professional and Commercial 323.68 835.86 1, 159.54 0.00 0.00

Equipment and Supplies Wholesalers

4216 Electrical Goods Wholesalers 1, 426. 16 613. 00 2, 039. 16 0.00 0. 00

4217 Hardware; and Plumbing and Heating 308. 80 4.00 312.80 0.00 0. 00

Equipment and Supplies Wholesalers

4218 Machinery; Equipment; and Supplies 1, 564.97 1, 772.02 3, 336.99 0.00 0.00

Wholesalers

4219 Miscellaneous Durable Goods 136.99 134.28 271. 27 0.00 0.00

Wholesalers

4221 Paper and Paper Product Wholesalers 221. 79 3, 371. 00 3, 592.79 0.00 0. 00

4224 Grocery and Related Product 272. 01 23.00 295.01 0.00 0.00

Wholesalers

4226 Chemical and Allied Products 292. 10 247.00 539. 10 0.00 0.00

Wholesalers

4229 Miscellaneous Nondurable Goods 56. 01 29. 18 85. 19 0. 00 0.00

Wholesalers

4233 Lumber and Other Construction 278.00 24.00 302.00 0.00 0.00

Materials Merchant Wholesalers

4234 Professional and Commercial 1, 439. 19 357.99 1, 797. 18 0.00 0.00

Equipment and Supplies Merchant
Wholesalers

4236 Electrical and Electronic Goods 156. 19 16.00 172. 19 0.00 0. 00

Merchant Wholesalers

3



Local Distribution by NAICS
June 2016

MAUMELLE

4238 Machinery; Equipment; and Supplies 38. 00 7. 00 45.00 0.00 0.00

Merchant Wholesalers

4239 Miscellaneous Durable Goods 30.00 97. 15 127. 15 0. 00 0. 00

Merchant Wholesalers

4242 Drugs and Druggists' Sundries 1. 00 41. 00 42. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Merchant Wholesalers

4243 Apparel; Piece Goods; and Notions 32.00 28.17 60. 17 0.00 0.00

Merchant Wholesalers

4244 Grocery and Related Product Merchant 371. 00 6. 00 377.00 0.00 0.00

Wholesalers

4249 Miscellaneous Nondurable Goods 0.00 7. 99 7. 99 0.00 0. 00

Merchant Wholesalers

4411 Automobile Dealers 163.33 0.00 163. 33 0.00 0.00

4413 Automotive Parts; Accessories; and 276.00 4,089.00 4,365. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Tire Stores

4421 Furniture Stores 2,024. 56 27.94 2,052.50 0. 00 0. 00

4422 Home Furnishings Stores 1, 377.46 9.00 1, 386.46 0.00 0. 00

4431 Electronics and Appliance Stores 2, 727. 53 463.99 3, 191. 52 0.00 0.00

4441 Building Material and Supplies Dealers 3,929. 89 1, 203.97 5, 133. 86 73.00 0.00

4442 Lawn and Garden Equipment and 34.00 30.00 64.00 0.00 0.00

Supplies Stores

4451 Grocery Stores 28, 116.00 91. 00 28, 207.00 0. 00 0. 00

4452 Specialty Food Stores 14. 00 68. 00 82. 00 0.00 0. 00

4461 Health and Personal Care Stores 3, 110. 11 478.52 3, 588.63 0.00 0.00

4



Local Distribution by NAICS
June 2016

MAUMELLE

4471 Gasoline Stations 6,772. 00 36. 00 6,808.00 0.00 0. 00

4481 Clothing Stores 179.95 745.44 925.39 0. 00 0. 00

4482 Shoe Stores 0. 00 49.41 49.41 0. 00 0.00

4483 Jewelry; Luggage; and Leather Goods 6. 00 124.49 130.49 0. 00 0.00

Stores

4511 Sporting Goods; Hobby; and Musical 457.98 147.88 605. 86 0. 00 0. 00
Instrument Stores

4512 Book; Periodical; and Music Stores 19.00 21. 00 40.00 0.00 0.00

4521 Department Stores 123.00 144. 00 267.00 0.00 0.00

4529 Other General Merchandise Stores 1, 373. 12 177.00 1, 550. 12 0. 00 0.00

4532 Office Supplies; Stationery; and Gift 1, 007. 07 306. 89 1, 313.96 0.00 0.00
Stores

4533 Used Merchandise Stores 274.64 0.00 274.64 0.00 0. 00

4539 Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers 1, 710.43 86. 18 1, 796.61 0.00 0. 00

4541 Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order 7, 504.85 671. 93 6, 832. 92 7, 754.00 0.00
Houses

4543 Direct Selling Establishments 483.34 160.96 644. 30 0. 00 0. 00

4931 Warehousing and Storage 60.00 19.00 79. 00 0. 00 0. 00

5111 Newspaper; Periodical; Book; and 1. 00 6. 35 7.35 0.00 0. 00

Directory Publishers

5132 Cable Networks and Program 12. 00 38.00 50.00 0.00 0.00
Distribution

5133 Telecommunications 6,929.67 34. 01 6,895.66 0.00 17,697.66

5



Local Distribution by NAICS
June 2016

MAUMELLE

5171 Wired Telecommunications Carriers 847. 00 17.00 864.00 0. 00 0.00

5172 Wireless Telecommunications Carriers 3, 371. 00 6. 00 3,377.00 0.00 0.00

except Satellite)

5179 Other Telecommunications 138.00 0.00 138.00 0.00 0.00

5191 Other Information Services 45.00 0.00 45.00 0.00 0. 00

5221 Depository Credit Intermediation 9.00 5. 00 14. 00 0. 00 0. 00

5222 Nondepository Credit Intermediation 159. 00 8.00 167.00 0. 00 0. 00

5241 Insurance Carriers 188. 00 3.00 191. 00 0. 00 0. 00

5242 Agencies; Brokerages; and Other 10.00 284.00 294.00 0. 00 0.00

Insurance Related Activities

5311 Lessors of Real Estate 79.00 1. 00 80. 00 0. 00 0. 00

5321 Automotive Equipment Rental and 1, 352. 18 15. 11 1, 367.29 0. 00 0. 00

Leasing

5322 Consumer Goods Rental 1, 312. 14 125.98 1, 438. 12 0.00 0.00

5324 Commercial and Industrial Machinery 4,899.89 31. 53 4, 931. 42 0.00 0.00

and Equipment Rental and Leasing

5413 Architectural; Engineering; and Related 36. 11 0.00 36. 11 0.00 0.00
Services

5414 Specialized Design Services 68.24 0.00 68.24 0.00 0. 00

5415 Computer Systems Design and 7. 00 529.91 536.91 0.00 0.00

Related Services

5416 Management; Scientific; and Technical 138.00 1. 00 139.00 0.00 0. 00

Consulting Services

5418 Advertising; Public Relations; and 269.60 1. 00 270.60 0.00 0.00

6



Local Distribution by NAICS
June 2016

MAUMELLE

Related Services

5419 Other Professional; Scientific; and 128. 31 34.00 162.31 0.00 0.00

Technical Services

5614 Business Support Services 11. 75 11. 07 22. 82 0.00 0. 00

5616 Investigation and Security Services 1, 000.90 103. 04 1, 103. 94 0.00 0.00

5617 Services to Buildings and Dwellings 3, 821. 25 14. 00 3,835.25 0.00 2. 68

5621 Waste Collection 275. 03 2.00 277.03 0.00 0.00

5629 Remediation and Other Waste 234.08 14.00 248.08 0.00 0.00

Management Services

7211 Traveler Accommodation 3, 282.28 0.00 3, 282.28 0. 00 0.00

7221 Full-Service Restaurants 13, 797.69 2.00 13, 799.69 0.00 0.00

7222 Limited-Service Eating Places 1, 275.74 3. 00 1, 278.74 0.00 0.00

7225 Food Services and Drinking Places; 2, 964.09 13.00 2,977.09 0. 00 0. 00

Unknown Subclassification

8111 Automotive Repair and Maintenance 867. 12 2. 00 869. 12 0.00 0.00

8112 Electronic and Precision Equipment 45.00 6.00 51. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Repair and Maintenance

8113 Commercial and Industrial Machinery 165.82 5. 00 170.82 0.00 0. 00

and Equipment( except Automotive

and Electronic) Repair and

Maintenance

8114 Personal and Household Goods Repair 150.05 0.00 150.05 0. 00 0. 00

and Maintenance

8123 Drycleaning and Laundry Services 1, 045.00 1, 047.00 2, 092.00 0.00 0. 00

7



Local Distribution by NAICS
June 2016

MAUMELLE

8129 Other Personal Services 368. 87 14.00 382.87 0.00 0. 00

Other NAICS with Less Than 3 Businesses 30,924.23 7, 591. 95 38, 516. 18 1, 477. 30 28.83

Automobile 5, 144. 03 807.58 5, 951. 61 0.00 0. 00

Wholesale Vending and Other 13. 30 0.00 13.30 0. 00 0.00

Unidentified Receipts

TOTALS 129,640.43 41, 078. 82 170,719.25 9,463.99 17,723.81

8



MEDIA ADVISORY

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Contact: Carlette Henderson, CEO Board Member

Counting on Each Other, Inc.
550 Edgewood Drive,

Maumelle, AR 72113

501- 851- 0029

Counting On Each Other, Inc. Awarded $ 10, 000 from Delta Dental of Arkansas

Maumelle, Arkansas (June 23, , 2016)- On July 6, 2016, 12 noon at the Maumelle Senior
Wellness Center, 550 Edgewood Drive, Maumelle, AR 72113, Delta Dental will award Counting On
Each Other, Inc. $10,000 to fund Dental program. Weldon Johnson, Executive Director of Delta

Dental' s Arkansas Foundation will make the presentation

David Hodges, President of CEO, states" that for the past eight (8) years, CEO has raised funds for

the improvement of dental health for our community' s low income senior citizens.  In partnership
with Bryan Austin, DDS and Richard Lewis, DDS, CEO has helped over 100 seniors with dental

care they could not otherwise afford. This unprecedented grant from Delta Dental will enable CEO
to assist another 15 deserving senior citizens this year."

Delta Dental contributes more than$ 1 million each year to help improve the oral health of
Arkansans. We are extremely grateful to Delta Dental of Arkansas, Dr. Austin and Dr. Lewis, as well
as the entire community of Maumelle for their support of our fund raising efforts and programs.

About Counting on Each Other, Inc.

The mission of CEO, Inc. (a 501c3 organization) is to support the goals of the Maumelle Senior

Wellness Center and to advocate, through community outreach, the physical and mental well-being
of seniors in the community. Donations are tax-deductible.



Third Entrance Workshop June 27, 2016

This workshop was requested by Alderman Mosley and he provided me with a list of
questions. I have not received any other questions from any other Aldermen so I have
basically crafted this discussion around Alderman Mosley's questions. I will try to answer
any questions that the Aldermen may have tonight but I cannot guarantee I will have the
answer. This workshop is open to the public but based on prior discussions with the
Council at a regular Council meeting, we will not be taking questions from the public
tonight.

How you think funding of the interchange will play out-
will our reserves cover our portion?

Estimated cost of the Interchange in 2014 was  $ 11. 5 million,  with inflation and or

increased construction it could be currently estimated to be $ 12 to $ 13 million.

Our current street fund reserves ( currently at 4. 0 million) could cover a 20% match ( 2.4

to 2.6 million) such as a typical 80/20 ( 80% Federal and 20%v local match) highway
project. General fund reserves currently at 5. 3 million, could also be used to supplement
funds if the Council chooses to use those funds for Interchange Purposes.

I don' t think this project will be an 80/20, it is more likely a 50/ 50 project, 50 percent federal
funds and 50% local funds. Since this project would benefit Maumelle, North Little Rock
and Pulaski County and property owners in the area. The 50% match could be divided up
in various splits between all of the benefitted parties. One scenario could be City of
Maumelle - 20 percent / City of North Little Rock — 10 percent / Pulaski County — 10

percent / Private Land Owners — 10 percent. If one group did not chose to participate it
would add 3 - 1/ 3 percent to the other parties amount required

what is the ability to use the 6. 6 mill financing by then to make up any short fall?

Based on the language in the Ballot, it would be very questionable if any of the current
funds could be used since it only stated the costs to construct the existing Counts Massie
Road and a new alignment or construction of the roadway to connect to the proposed I-
40 Interchange and connections to Short Marche Road. It does not reference or mention

any construction of the actual Interchange.

BALLOT LANGUAGE — "A proposal to issue limited tax general obligation bonds under the

Arkansas Constitution, Amendment 62, and the Local Government Bond Act of1985, as amended,
in the maximum principal amount of$ 9,830,000 to finance a portion of the costs to design,
engineer, improve, construct, acquire and repair the existing Counts Massie Road( resurface and
widen a portion of the street within Maumelle City Limits) to the current Master Street Plan
standards together with the extension of water and sewer utilities,  and a new alignment or
construction of the roadway to connect to the proposed I-40 Interchange and connection to Short
Marche Road including,  without limitation,  sidewalks,  bicycle paths and utility relocations

1



together with any necessary land acquisition and street, parking and drainage improvements
therefor andpaying the costs of issuance related thereto."

If the City Council decided they wanted to use the 6.6 mils for the Interchange Funding
and the bond payments could be supported with the millage, an election could be held for

a new Bond Issue and refund the current bonds. According to the 2015 Bond issue, the
bonds are subject to an optional redemption after March 1, 2022. There possibly could
be an advanced refunding possibly in 2020 if the economic conditions made sense. The
current interest rates would have to be considered at the time of the issuance.

Details of the Freeman agreements such as

whether we will have more negotiations that result in concessions from the City like
the escrow deal

I don' t think that will be the case but Interchange LLC, an entity controlled by Mr. Freeman
owns land on the east side of the interstate that will be required for right of way. The
purchase of Right of way is included in the Interchange cost estimate.

what the clauses about zoning will mean as it concerns normal planning procedures

In Section 3 of the agreement that was executed in May of 2003, the City agreed to rezone
Mr. Freeman' s land as 1- 1, but it also agree to zone or rezone any portion of the property
known as Newton Ridge or Interchange LLC Properties to a zoning classification that the
property owner directed in writing during the Construction period. This would require an
action by the City Council as per Section 9 in the referenced agreement therefore I am
not sure it deviates from normal planning procedures as the Planning Commission makes
a recommendation to the City Council on all zoning issues. If it was not presented to the
Planning Commission for a recommendation,  that could be a deviation of normal

procedures.      I will let the City Attorney weigh in on if he thinks this would be a change
in normal planning procedures, if he wishes.

I will point at this time - also in Section 3 of the agreement, the City agreed to allow above
ground electric feeder circuits along and adjacent to the roadway. If the City chooses not
to allow that in the future,  it may be responsible for the cost differential between
underground and above ground for the electrical infrastructure installation.

Expected completion time table of Counts Massie extension and expected completion

of the interchange and whether such a gap is a problem
in regard to Maumelle Blvd traffic
otherwise

The estimated completion of the Counts Massie extension is July of 2017,  weather
permitting.  The design for the Interchange should take approximately 22 months,  if

approvals are timely by the regulatory agencies. That timeframe would put construction
starting in 2018 if funding is available with an estimated construction time of 18 to 24
months. That would put completion of the interchange in 2020 if everything goes as

2



planned. I don' t anticipate a lot of growth in large traffic generators until the interchange

is completed. There could be construction of developments that are proceeding in the
same time frame as the interchange similar to what has occurred at the 1430 — 130

interchange and Bass Pro Shop.

I think other factors and developments elsewhere in the City and NLR will affect the traffic
on Maumelle Boulevard to a greater extent than developments that will occur in this area

in the gap period as you refer to it.

What are landowners like Freeman talking about and otherwise looking to do with the
extension and interchange in place?

I do not know of any definite plans but I am sure you can look at similar developments to
occur at this interchange as others in the area — Retail / Commercial Centers, hotels,

restaurants but there is no guarantee of this type of development.

What are you thinking about annexation or other connecting roads on over to 365 or
otherwise.

I do think that we should be considering annexation of that area east of the interchange
but we currently don' t have any direct access which makes it an issue for providing some
services.  Also what concessions or promises would be required for a voluntary
annexation? A similar agreement to the one signed in 2003, which would concern me.

The requirement to extend utilities to this area could be a concern if it requires crossing
the interstate. Let' s wait until the plans are completed by CAW for the new transmission
line to serve Maumelle and the final layout of the White Oak Bayou Interceptor being
constructed by North Little Rock Waste Water Utility.

I think a connecting roadway to 365 should be constructed after the interchange is
completed to provide greater access to residents of that area of the county.

Are utilities anything to worry about at this point?

In the same agreement signed in May of 2003, Water and Sewer were promised to the
Newton Ridge property. This requirement should be met by the 30 " transmission line that

Central Arkansas Water is constructing to serve all of Maumelle and a sewer interceptor
being constructed by NLRWW in the White Oak Bayou Basin currently. Other utilities
such as gas, electric, telephone is typically installed by the utility or their contractor based
on the future use of that utility and the rate of return versus the cost of installation. If they
don' t anticipate the return on the sale of the utility will cover the costs of installation, they
may charge the developer for the installation.

I need to point out again that in the agreement referenced above the City agreed to allow
above ground electric feeder circuits along and adjacent to the roadway.  If the City
chooses not to allow that in the future,  it may be responsible for the cost differential
between underground and above ground.

3



What can we as aldermen do to help speed this whole process along as fast as
possible?

When we get to point of constructing the interchange, approve the necessary funding and
help convince the other government entities that the project is a benefit for both cities and
the county.

How can aldermen stay better informed about this whole process so we can do a better,
and more factually correct, job of communicating to constituents?

Ask me questions, I will try to give written updates every 3 months or so to the City Council
as the projects progress. It is hard for me to sit down to write even a one page document

while dealing with other issues and all of the facets of all City projects.

Basically, I am interested in seeing you be successful in getting the road and interchange
completed over the next 2 1/ 2 years and I think that is the case with all Council
members.  I believe that the newer aldermen are probably only vaguely familiar with the
Freeman deal and would like better understandings of what was put in place back in
Mayor Johnson's tenure and how it has affected the process.  I' d actually like to see this
workshop be relatively brief and be followed by additional informal update type workshops
perhaps every 3 months or so as the process moves toward fruition.

Steve

Additional comments that were not addressed in questions:

Regarding the engineering design on the Interchange, I informed you in an update in
January that our current engineering firm - Liedos had closed their Little Rock office. In

order to have a local office to continue the project Liedos has assigned the contract to

Michael Baker International who has a Little Rock office and is currently working with the
Highway Department on several other projects. The agreement has now been signed by
all of the affected parties. A meeting with AHTD,  FHWA and Michael Baker is being
scheduled for later this week or next week to get everyone up to speed and get the project
moving again.

The clearing and grubbing started today on the Counts Massie Roadway extension. It will
take about 20 days to get to White Oak Bayou.

4


